Mission summary of WTO- STDF consultant to Liberia
Needs assessment and strategy for the development of Liberia’s SPS system (STDF/PPG/324)
Londa Vanderwal; 5-23 July 2008

The consultant carried out a mission to Liberia to conduct a needs assessment and assist with the
development of a strategy for the development of Liberia's Sanitary and Phytosanitary (SPS) system,
under an STDF project preparation grant (STDF/PPG/324). The request for this mission was made by the
Liberia Ministry of Commerce and Industry to assist in the process of meeting the SPS-related
requirements of WTO membership, and to improve food safety, animal and plant health in Liberia.

Strengthening the SPS system in Liberia will enable the country to prevent the import of sub-standard
products that may threaten public health or plant and animal health, improve the health and safety of
domestically produced and processed foods, and will also assist future food and agriculture exports from
Liberia to meet international SPS standards.

The international consultant worked in close collaboration with the Ministry of Trade of Liberia, as well
as a national consultant hired to assist in the assessment and planning of a future project. The consultant
also worked closely with the National Technical Coordinator of the West African Quality Programme
(WAQP), which is implemented by UNIDO, and also presented her Terms of Reference and sought input
from the members of the WAQP national steering committee in their regular meeting on 22 July 2010.

The consultants met with numerous relevant stakeholders in food safety, animal and plant health in
Liberia in the private sector, public sector, NGOs, UN agencies, and other civil society organizations, as
indicated in the attached list of persons met (Annex 1). A consultative meeting was held on 9 July 2010
with the main government agencies responsible for food safety, animal and plant health. The consultant
also attended a workshop that was organized on 20 July 2010 by the Ministry of Agriculture regarding an
Agro-Industrial Development Policy, which allowed her to meet numerous stakeholders working in
agriculture in Liberia.

In conducting the needs assessment, the consultant utilized a “Biosecurity” capacity evaluation tool which
was developed by FAO to assess needs in an integrated food safety, animal and plant health system. The
consultant met with relevant stakeholders, visited food production, processing, and handling facilities, the
seaport, and other relevant locations. The consultant also reviewed the results of a number of related
capacity evaluations for information. The resultant complete report of the capacity evaluation will be
submitted to the national stakeholders for their review and comments.

The consultant also met and corresponded with various donors, technical agencies, and other civil society
organizations (Annex 1) regarding the development of a project to strengthen the SPS system, based on
the results of the capacity assessment. The consultant drafted a project proposal to be submitted to various
donors for funding and implementation. The Integrated Framework National Implementation Unit (IF-
NIU) was particularly involved in this process and will ensure the successful implementation of the
resultant project.

As previously indicated, the assessment report and project proposal will be submitted to the various
stakeholders and donors in Liberia for their review and comments in August 2010. A validation



workshop will then be held in September 2010 where the consultant will present the findings of the
assessment report and the final project proposal and receive additional comments and will make revisions
as necessary.

Conclusions and recommendations

The food safety, animal and plant health system in Liberia has been greatly weakened by nearly 20 years
of civil strife and requires extensive strengthening, which was recognized by all of the stakeholders
visited in this assessment. Liberia also has vast natural resources and exciting potential for agricultural
production, which can reduce dependency on food imports (which are often of inferior quality) and can
also be exported to lucrative export markets. Further, importing countries have shown great interest in
buying products from Liberia and have included the country in preferential market access schemes such
as the African Growth and Opportunity Act (AGOA). However, these importing countries have strict
quality and safety requirements which must be met in order to take advantage of these lucrative trade
opportunities. In addition, Liberia is particularly vulnerable to increased pests and diseases, including
food-borne illnesses, due to its porous borders, high levels of imported food, and extensive movement of
people, goods and animals to and from the neighbouring countries.

Therefore, Liberia must urgently strengthen its food safety, animal and plant health system to protect
domestic consumers (and domestic animal and plant health) and also to expand opportunities for exports.
A strategic plan to strengthen this system has been developed (included in the full biosecurity assessment
report), as well as a project proposal to address key items of the plan. Some key recommendations, in
addition to implementing the strategic plan, to strengthen this system are as follows:

- A coordinating mechanism for food safety, animal and plant health matters, such as a standards
body, should be created and provided adequate resources to have long-term effectiveness.

- The roles of various agencies in certification and other functions, such as the competent authority
for fisheries exports need to be clarified.

- The National Codex Committee must be strengthened, and could also serve as the national SPS
committee; many members of the current WAQP national steering committee should be involved
in the Codex committee.

- Other projects and agencies should concentrate on strengthening existing functioning laboratories
in the country (such as the Standards Lab once completed), rather than building, equipping, and
staffing additional laboratories. The standards lab must continue to be strengthened through
allocation of government funds for its long-term maintenance.

- The government must, as a matter of urgency, continue in their efforts to harmonize and
strengthen inspections conducted in Liberia, and ensure that this allocation of inspection duties is
actually carried out by the inspectors. Inspectors also need continued training.

- Liberia should become a member of OIE so that they can benefit from an OIE assessment and
receive support from OIE in strengthening their veterinary services



- Persons met during mission (5-23 July 2010)
- Londa Vanderwal- Liberia- STDF/PPG/324

- Annex1

- *Note that unless indicated, the phone numbers are in Liberia (country code +231). The leading 0 in the listed in Liberian phone
numbers should be removed when dialing these numbers internationally.

- Consultative Meeting participants (9 July 2010)

Name Organization Role Phone Email Address/ URL

Dr. Frederick | Ministry of Commerce | Deputy Minister for 06 933 229 yzonnie@aol.com; Ashmun/Gurley Streets,

Norkeh and Industry Commerce & Industry fnorkeh@yahoo.com Monrovia;

WWW.moci.gov.Ir
Sei Ghan Ministry of Commerce | Assistant Ministry for 06512 488 wonkemie532002@yahoo.co | (As above)
and Industry Industry 04 710 567 m; swgahn@moci.gov.Ir

Clara Doe UNIDO/ Ministry of National Technical 06 445 160 cdmvogo@hotmail.com Ministry of Commerce

Mvogo Commerce Coordinator of WAQP; and Industry, Ashmun/
One of main counterparts Gurley Streets, Monrovia
for STDF project

Amin Modad | Integrated Framework | EIF focal point; Also one of | 077 425 002; | amodad123@yahoo.com Rose Garden Building,

National
Implementation Unit

main counterparts for
STDF project

06 418 218

Broad Street, Crown Hill,
Monrovia

Fong Zuagele

Integrated Framework
National
Implementation Unit

Economist

077 425 002;
088 052 2220

Rose Garden Building,
Broad Street, Crown Hill,
Monrovia

Janniedel Integrated Framework | Legal Officer 077 425 002; | ladydell5@yahoo.com Rose Garden Building,
Haider National 06 513 749; Broad Street, Crown Hill,
Implementation Unit 077 513 749 Monrovia
Stephen Standards Laboratory | Head of Food Chemistry 06 246 161 mambusteve@yahoo.com Ministry of Public Works
Mambu Lab; national consultant compound, Monrovia
for STDF project
Dargbe Ministry of Planning Assistant Minister, Bureau | 06 546 745 Capitol Hill, Monrovia




Nimley and Economic Affairs of Economic Cooperation
and Integration
Eric Cooper Ministry of Quality Control Manager 06 857 944 Freeport, Monrovia
Agriculture- Bureau of
National Fisheries
Decountee Ministry of Finance/ Commissioner 06 560 806 deconteeking@yahoo.com Broad Street, Monrovia
King Customs
Wounpay Ministry of Finance/ Analyst 06 571677 Broad Street, Monrovia
Doe Customs
Langley Liberia Chamber of Program Officer 06 446 448 Ink@chambereofcommerce.o | Capitol Hill, Queen’s
Kialain Commerce rg.Ir; nyakialain@yahoo.com | Avenue, Monrovia
Earl Neblett Environmental Supervisor for 06 546 345 neb ear@yahoo.com Tubman Boulevard,
Protection Agency Environmental Quality and Sinkor, Monrovia
(EPA) Standards, Dept. of
Monitoring and
Assessment
- Others met during mission
Name/ Date Organization Role Phone Email Adress/URL
met (all in 2010)
Hon. Miata Ministry of Minister mbeysolow@yahoo.com Ashmun/Gurley Streets,
Beysolow/ 9 July | Commerce and Monrovia;
Industry WWW.Mmoci.gov.Ir
Nim’ne Mombo, | Integrated Finance/ Admin Manager | 077 425 002; | nemjr79@yahoo.com Rose Garden Building,
Jr/ 6 July Framework National 06 510 139; Broad Street, Crown Hill,
Implementation Unit 076 510 139 Monrovia
Tonieh Alpha/ Integrated Administrative Assistant | 077 425 002; | Tu_2ee@yahoo.com Rose Garden Building,
6 July Framework National Broad Street, Crown Hill,
Implementation Unit Monrovia
Gulu Gwesa/ Standards Laboratory | Head of Food 06 676 155 ulug530@yahoo.com Ministry of Public Works
6 July Microbiology Lab compound, Monrovia
Paulinas Koffie/ | Aqua Life water General Manager 06 826 730 Red Hill, Greater




7 July bottling company Monrovia
Augustine Aqua Life water Laboratory Manager 06 826 730 Red Hill, Greater
Paywala/7 July bottling company Monrovia
Ali Merhi/ 7 July | Blue Lake water General Manager 05672672 a_merhi@hotmail.co.uk Bomi County
bottling company
Emmanuel Club Brewery Laboratory technician/ 06 516 399 Greater Monrovia
Doubla/ Jacob Laboratory manager
Brown/ 8 July
Peter Lowe/ World Bank Forestry Coordinator 06937 144 plowe@worldbank.org; Bright Building, Mamba
8 July peter.lowe@yahoo.co.uk Point, Monrovia;
www.worldbank.org
Dr. Peter World Health Environmental Health 06 522 998 clementp@Ir.afro.who.int; J& E Building, Sekou
Clement Lugala/ | Organization Advisor clug@2@yahoo.co.uk Toure Ave, Mamba Point,
8 July Monrovia
Jefyne Bates / Arjay Farms, Aquarius | Assistant Manager 06 693917 Careysburg, Monteserrat
9 July Water bottling County
Shitau Miura/ Japan International Project Formulation 0770 Miura.Shitau@jica.go.jp UNHCR/Haider Building,
10 July Cooperation Agency Adviser (current leader 77954/5-6; Mamba Point, Monrovia;
(Jica) of office in Liberia) 06 266 484 WWW.jica.go.jp
Hiroyuki Japan International Executive Advisor to the +81 35226 Kubota.Hiroyuki@jica.go.jp Tokyo JAPAN;
Kubota/ 10 July | Cooperation Agency Director General- Rural 8406 www.jica.go.ip
(JICA) Development
Department
Kie Maegawa/ Japan International Local Consultant 0770 MaegawaKie.GN@jica.go.jp UNHCR/Haider Building,
10 July Cooperation Agency 77954/5-6; Mamba Point, Monrovia;
(JICA) 06 459 742 WWW.jica.go.jp
Gabriel Bedell/ Export Promoters of Manager 06 560 954 Monrovia
12 July Liberia, Inc (NGO)
George Africare Finance Manager 077 130901; | georgelansana@yahoo.com Monrovia;
Lansana/ 12 July 06 415 496 www.africare.org
Ralph Woods/ Africare Agriculture Project 06 530 706; Monrovia;
12 July Manager 077 035 466 www.africare.org
Macaetoh Ministry of Inspector General (1G)/ 06912 109 Ashmun/Gurley Streets,
Wreh/ Henrique | Commerce- Deputy IG/ Coordinator Monrovia;




Harvey/Benedict

Inspectorate Division

of Port Inspection

WWW.moci.gov.Ir

Wreh/ 12 July
Anjad Tunis/ Bureau Veritas/ Head of BIVAC port 06 589 507 Freeport, Monrovia
12 July Bureau Inspection inspection
Valuation Assessment
Control (BIVAC)
Anwar Ezedine/ | United Commodities | Chief Executive Officer 05 448 245 united_commodities Freeport, Monrovia
12 July Inc @yahoo.com
Ivan Muir/ SGS Managing Director 077 874 352; | lvan.muir@sgs.com 27 Old Town Road, Congo
13 July 06 874 352 Town, Monrovia;
WWW.Sgs.com
Aboyoma EPA Acting lab supervisor 06 531 903 Tubman Boulevard,
Grant/ 13 July Sinkor, Monrovia
Henry Bernard/ | BIVAC Deputy Managing 06 513 829; Broad Street, Monrovia
13 July Director 06 226 491
Dehwehn Ministry of Health Director, Environmental | 06 669 906 doyeabah@yahoo.com Capital By-Pass, Monrovia
Yeabah/ Joseph | and Social Welfare and Occupational Health
David/ 13 July Division/ Assistant
Director for Admin.
Abdul Razak/ FAO Emergency Coordinator 06 784 870 abdul.razak@fao.org UN drive, Mamba Point,
13 July Monrovia
Daniel Whyner/ | USAID USDA Forest Service 077 054 826; | dwhyner@usaid.gov US Embassy, UN Drive,
13 July Land and Community 077 232967 Monrovia
Forestry Advisor,
Economic Growth Office
Yevewuo Bureau of National Coordinator 06 517 742 yevewuozsubah@yahoo.com | Bureau of National
Subah/ 14 July Fisheries, Ministry of Fisheries, Freeport,
Agriculture Monrovia
Joseph Ministry of Coordinator of 06 540 023; joeelson2000@yahoo.com; Somalia Drive, Monrovia;
Anderson/ Agriculture- Technical | Veterinary Unit 077 361200 | jrnanderson@moa.gov.Ir
14 July Department
Nykoi Jomah/ Ministry of Livestock Officer Somalia Drive, Monrovia

14 July

Agriculture- Technical
Department




Festus Samah/ (As above) Livestock Officer 06973 751 Somalia Drive, Monrovia
14 July
Edward Fatoma/ | (As above) Veterinary Assistant 06973 751 Somalia Drive, Monrovia
14 July
Solomon (As above) Acting Director- Bureau 04 710 358 Somalia Drive, Monrovia
Browne/ 14 July of Animal Resources
Chea Garley/ (As above) Assistant Minister- 06 574 465 Somalia Drive, Monrovia
14 July Technical Department
Lawrence (As above) (Plant) Quarantine- 06 543 623 lawrence.massaquoi@yahoo. | Somalia Drive, Monrovia
Massaquoi/ Assistant Director com
14 July
Edward Camara/ | Forestry Manager for marketing 06 823 646 Lonestar Compound,
15 July Development and forest revenue Sinkor
Authority protection
Johansen Voker/ | Environmental Manger, Planning, Policy | 06 520 042 vokerj@yahoo.com 4" Street, Tubman Blvd,
15 July Protection Agency & Legal Affairs; Biosafety Sinkor, Monrovia;
Contact Point www.epa.gov.lr
Roosevelt Ministry of Central Veterinary 06 380 064 Fendell, Monteserrat
Gweh/ 15 July Agriculture Laboratory- Lab County
Supervisor
Adolfo Cires European Union Food Security and Rural 077 731776 | Adolfo.CIRES- UN Drive, Mamba Point,
Alonso / 16 July Development ALONSO@ec.europa.eu Monrovia
Carlos European Union Food Security and Rural Carlos-Adolfo.BATTAGLINI- UN Drive, Mamba Point,
Battaglini/ Development MANRIQUE-DE-LARA@e Monrovia
16 July c.europa.eu
Dr. L.I. Braimah/ | World Bank National Coordinator for | 088 064 Bureau of National
16 July Regional Fisheries 1617 Fisheries, Freeport,
Project Monrovia
Francis Tamba/ | Ministry of Health Food Unit- Coordinator/ | 0652094/ fftamba@yahoo.com Capital By-Pass, Monrovia
Henry Lawray/ and Social Welfare Assistant Coordinator 077 059 806
16 July
Lasana Donzo/ Ministry of Assistant Director, 06 524 311 Ashmun/Gurley Streets,
19 July Commerce and Standards Division Monrovia;

Industry

WWW.moci.gov.Ir




Francis Mwah/ Ministry of Agro-Industrial 06 678 266 fwmwah058@yahoo.com Monrovia
20 July Agriculture Development
Hon. Nyah Liberian Produce Managing Director/ 06 690937; | bgmchildren@yahoo.com Freeport, Monrovia
Mantein/ T Marketing Standards Division/ 06 937 356
Roosevelt Corporation Director of Procurement
Blatty/Sam
Allison/ 20 July
Samuel Saki/ Premier Flour Mill Production Manager/ 06 892350 Somalia Drive, near
John Clemme/ Laboratory Manager Freeport, Monrovia
20 July
Tarence Kpaper/ | Ministry of Meat inspector at 06 594 432 Abbatoir near Freeport,
21 July Agriculture Abbatoir Monrovia
Bella Diallo/ MSP Business Center/ | Chairman/ Executive 06 998 728; Southwesttradingcompany UN Drive, Water Side,
21 July Chamber of Council Member 06 585 216; @yahoo.com Monrovia

Commerce 077 753 226
Anthony Taplah, | University of Liberia, | Assistant Professor, 06511043 anthony.taplah@ Fendell Campus
Sr/ Matthew College of Agriculture | Forestry Department/ euroliberialogging.com;
Kamara/ 21 July Assistant to the Dean anthonytaplah@yahoo.com
Henry National Consumers National Coordinator 06 666 668; henrypwolokolie@yahoo.co Standard Stationery Store
Wolokolie/ Council of Liberia 077090406 | m Building, Broad Street,
21 July Monrovia
Cecil Nartey/ African Development | Principal Country +232 76 541 | c.nartey@afdb.org; Freetown, SIERRA LEONE;
21 July Bank Programme Officer 328 cecilnartey@hotmail.com www.afdb.org
Rogers African Development | Agriculture Program r.lubunga@afdb.org Tunis, TUNISIA
Lubunga/ 20 Jul | Bank coordinator
Abraham Monrovia City Waste Management & 06551954 abrahamgarnoe@yahoo.com | MCC Compound, Mamba
Garneo/ Joshua | Corporation Sanitation- Point, Monrovia
Williams/ 22 Jul Manager/Assistant
Joseph Weah/ Pharmacy Board of Chair of West African 06539698 josephweah19@yahoo.com Camp Johnson Road, Yes
22 July Liberia Quality Program Steering Building, Monrovia

Committee

Roland Morris/ | Ministry of Consultant- Intellectual 06512 751 gberzon@yahoo.com Ashmun/Gurley Streets,
22 July Commerce and Property Systems Monrovia;

Industry

WWW.moci.gov.Ir




Alberto Giani/ CARE International Project Manager- 06 136 546 alberto.giani@co.care.org WWWw.care.org
22 July Urban/Peri-Urban
Agriculture Project

Patrick Okoth/ Oxfam Public Health Advisor 06619 322; | pokoth@oxfam.org.uk 10" Street, Sinkor,

22 July 077 315 162 Monrovia;
www.oxfam.org.uk

Nyan Zikeh/ Oxfam Public Health Officer (As above)

22 July

Floor Verbeek/ BRAC (Bangladesh- Communication 06 840 084 floorverbeek.brac@gmail.co | Allison Street, Congo

22 July based NGO) Coordinator m Town, Monrovia;
www.brac.net

Kerkulah Kollie/ | Tubman National School of Environmental Next to JFK Hospital,

James Dogba/ Institute of Medical Health- Director/ Sinkor

James Barclay/ Arts (TNIMA) Instructors

23 July

Dr. Gun Eriksson | Embassy of Sweden/ | Senior Programme 06 978 254 gun.eriksson.skoog@sida.se Mamba Point, Monrovia

Skoog/ 23 July

Swedish International
Development Agency

Manager/ Acting Country
Director




